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REPORT OF REGISTERED INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To: The Board of Directors and Stockholders of

American Lorain Corporation
We have reviewed the accompanying interim consolidated balance sheets of American Lorain Corporation ( the
Company ) as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, and the related statements of income, stockholders
equity, and cash flows for the three and nine months period ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. These interim
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and
making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, the objective
of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
interim consolidated financial statements for them to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the balance sheets of American Lorain Corporation as of December 31, 2012, and the related
statements of income, comprehensive income, retained earnings, and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented
herein); and in our report dated March 14, 2013, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. In
our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed balance sheet as of December 31, 2012, is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the balance sheet from which it has been derived.

San Mateo, California WWC, P.C.
November 1, 2013 Certified Public Accountants
1
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Stated in US Dollars)
(Audited)
Note At September 30, At December 31,
ASSETS 2013 2012
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2(d) 33,160,895 $ 32,345,603
Restricted cash 3 1,454,114 3,998,956
Trade accounts receivable 4 45,472,432 48,734,017
Other receivables 5 5,856,617 4,861,280
Inventory 6 53,865,827 38,072,704
Advance to suppliers 29,110,443 22,295,529
Prepaid expenses and taxes 3,392,192 381,905
Deferred tax asset 179,914 175,211
Security deposits and other assets 3,228,522 9,293,615
Total current assets 175,720,956 $ 160,158,820
Non-current assets
Investment - 270,019
Property, plant and equipment, net 7 87,570,560 84,639,726
Construction in Progress, net 7 42,062 -
Land use rights, net 8 16,431,734 5,296,668
TOTAL ASSETS $ 279,765,312 $ 250,365,233
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short-term bank loans 9 $ 33,032,397 $ 28,725,143
Long-term debt current portion 12 5,053,696 4,226,107
Accounts payable 2,652,901 3,646,560
Taxes payable 10 2,754,403 5,005,346
Accrued liabilities and other payables 11 2,671,402 979,797
Customers deposits 90,820 1,428
Total current liabilities $ 46,255,619 $ 42,584,381
Long-term liabilities
Long-term bank loans 12 9,047,202 14,382,306
Notes payable and debenture 12 29,333,160 12,696,196
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 84,635,981 $ 69,662,883
2
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Stated in US Dollars)
(Audited)
At September 30, At December 31,
Note 2013 2012
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred Stock, $.001 par value, 5,000,000 shares
authorized; O shares issued and outstanding at September
30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively - -
Common Stock, $0.001 par value, 200,000,000 shares
authorized; 34,616,714 shares issued and outstanding as
of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively 13 34,617 34,617
Additional paid-in capital 53,487,389 53,487,389
Statutory reserves 2(r) 16,922,494 16,922,494
Retained earnings 93,372,932 84,097,961
Accumulated other comprehensive income 20,959,885 16,210,661
Non-controlling interests 14 10,352,014 9,949,228
TOTAL STOCKHOLDER S EQUITY $ 195,129,331 $ 180,702,350

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER S
EQUITY $ 279,765,312 $ 250,365,233
See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements and Accountant s Report
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Net revenues
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

Note

2(t),15

Cost of revenues
Gross profit

Operating expenses
Selling and marketing

expenses
General and

administrative

expenses

Operating income

Government
income

subsidy

Interest income
Other income
Other expenses
Interest expense

Earnings before tax

Income tax

Net income

2(q),16

Other comprehensive

income:

Foreign currency
translation gain
Comprehensive

Income
Net income

attributable to:

-Common
stockholders

-Non-controlling

interest

(Stated in US Dollars)
Three months ended September 30,
2013 2012
$ 53,103,910 $ 57,972,627
(42,786,893) (45,583,295)
$ 10,317,017 $
2,174,055 2,310,863
1,418,386 1,627,095
3,592,441 3,937,958
$ 6,724,576 $ 8,451,374
344,447 281,374
37,880 2,886
1,107,944 44,472
(50,329) (6,434)
(2,444,169) (1,128,368)
$ 5,720,349 $ 7,645,304 $
(1,233,718) (2,037,590)
$ 4,486,631 $ 5,607,714  $
1,169,323 (317,396)
5,655,955 5,290,318
$ 4,256,690 $ 5,252,569 $
229,941 355,145
$ 4,486,631 $ 5,607,714  $

2013

$ 121,978,566

(97,233,792)

12,389,332 § 24,744,774

5,561,435
4,293,756
9,855,191
14,889,583
1,447,789
57,730
1,318,999
(134,547)
(4,612,763)
12,966,791

(3,289,034)

9,671,757

4,749,225

14,426,982

9,274,971

402,786
9,671,757

$
$

Nine months ended September 30,

2012

135,930,419

(107,582,656)

28,347,763

5,098,669
4,387,609
9,486,278
18,861,485
1,135,730
192,076
98,779
(24,098)
(2,703,251)
17,560,721

(4,631,730)

12,928,991

89,984

13,018,975

12,165,013

763,978
12,928,991
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Earnings per share 2(u), 17

- Basic $ 0.12 $ 0.15 $ 0.27 $ 0.35
- Diluted $ 0.12 $ 0.15 $ 0.27 $ 0.35
Weighted average
shares outstanding
- Basic 34,616,714 34,507,874 34,616,714 34,507,874
- Diluted 34,616,714 34,507,874 34,616,714 34,507,874

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements and Accountant s Report
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Cash flows from operating
activities
Net income

Stock and share based
compensation

Depreciation of fixed assets

Amortization of intangible
assets

Adjustment to statutory reserve

(Increase)/decrease in accounts
& other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in
inventories

Decrease/(increase) in
prepayment

Decrease/(increase) in deferred
tax asset

Increase/(decrease) in accounts
and other payables

Net cash (used in)/provided by
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Sale/(Proceeds) from short-term

investment

Purchase of plant and
equipment

Payment for the purchase of
land use rights

(Increase)/decrease in restricted

cash
(Increase)/decrease in deposit
Net cash used in investing
activities

Cash flows from financing
activities

Repayment of bank borrowings
Proceeds from bank borrowings

Proceeds from long-term
borrowings and notes payable

AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE NINE AND SEPTEMBER MONTH PERIODS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

(Stated in US Dollars)

Three months ended
September 30

013

$ 4,486,631

1,038,882

103,369

(15,348,361)
(4,158,037)
(175,611)
(1,073)
1,453,567

(12,600,633)

(449,239)
(9,573,248)

1,410,693
9,448,858

837,064

3,704,702
8,185,100

(1,884,630)

012

5,607,714

328,897
847,188

32,464

(19,575,936)

(11,914,113)

(1,453,208)
265
1,050,685

(25,076,044)

(2,707,402)
15,741

746,976
(1,556)

(1,946,241)

19,753,932

4,747,587

Nine months ended

(11,784,939)

270,019
(3,349,076)
(11,336,904)

2,544,842
6,065,094

(5,806,025)

(3,536,275)
23,748,796

(3,775,819)

September 30
2013 2012
$ 9,677,757 12,928,991
- 380,504
3,155,850 2,017,237
201,840 127,284
- 681,175
(4,459,274) (7,911,633)
(15,793,124) (17,600,510)
(3,010,288) (2,182,781)
(4,703) (866)
(1,552,997) (1,563,843)

(13,124,442)

(2,834,955)
(32,897)

(1,124,254)
(1,668)

(3,993,774)

(7,405,267)
19,066,286

4,747,587

10
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Net cash provided by/(used in)

financing activities $ 10,005,172

Net Increase/(decrease) of Cash

and Cash Equivalents (1,758,397)
Effect of foreign currency

translation on cash and cash

equivalents 531,017

Cash and cash
equivalents beginning of period 34,388,275

Cash and cash equivalents end of
period $ 33,160,895

Supplementary cash flow
information:

Interest received $ 79
Interest paid $ 508,724
Income taxes paid $ 3,184,293

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements and Accountant s Report

$

$

$
$
$

5

24,501,519 $ 16,436,702

(2,520,766) (1,154,262)

(316,636) 1,969,554

19,568,782 32,345,603

16,731,380 $ 33,160,895

2,880 $ 19,929
919,218 $ 2,338,057
1,348,553 $ 7,364,364

$

$
$
$

16,408,606

(709,610)

87,496

17,353,494

16,731,380

192,076
2,751,309
5,136,481

11
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS

EQUITY

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Number
of
Shares

Common
Stock

Balance,

January 1, 2012 34,507,874
Issuance of
share based
compensation
Repayment of
financing cost -
Net income - -
Allocation to

non-controlling

interests - -
Appropriations

to statutory

reserve - -
Adjustment to

statutory

reserve - -
Foreign

currency

translation

adjustment - -

34,508

108,840 109

Balance,
December 31,
2012 34,616,714 34,617
Balance,

January 1, 2013 34,616,714
Net income

Allocation to
non-controlling

interests

Foreign

currency

translation

adjustment

34,617

Balance,
September 30,
2013

34,616,714 34,617

(STATED IN US DOLLARS)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Paid-in Statutory Retained Comprehensive
Capital Reserves Earnings Income
53,015,636 13,976,899 65,939,713 15,353,885
503,493 - - -
(31,740) - - -
- - 21,743,769 -
- - (1,321,101) -
2,264,420 (2,264,420) -
- 681,175 - -
- - - 856,776
53,487,389 16,922,494 84,097,961 16,210,661
53,487,389 16,922,494 84,097,961 16,210,661
9,677,757
(402,786)
4,749,224
53,487,389 16,922,494 93,372,932 20,959,885

Non-
Controlling
Interests

8,628,127

1,321,101

9,949,228

9,949,228

402,786

10,352,014

Total

156,948,76

503,60

(31,74
21,743,76

681,17

856,77

180,702,35

180,702,35

9,677,75

4,749,22

195,129,33

12
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See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements and Accountant s Report
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)

1. ORGANIZATION, BASIS OF PRESENTATION, AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Organization history of American Lorain Corporation (formerly known as Millennium Quest, Inc.)

American Lorain Corporation (the Company or ALN ) was originally a Delaware corporation incorporated
on February 4, 1986. From inception through May 3, 2007, the Company did not engage in any active
business operations other than in search and evaluation of potential business opportunity to become an
acquiree of a reverse-merger deal. On May 3, 2007, the Company entered into a share exchange
agreement as described under Reverse-Merger below. On November 12, 2009, the Company filed a
statement of merger in the state of Nevada to transfer the Company s jurisdiction from Delaware to
Nevada.

Organization History of International Lorain Holding Inc. and its subsidiaries

ALN owns 100% of the equity of International Lorain Holding Inc. ( ILH ). ILH is a Cayman Islands
company incorporated on August 4, 2006 and was wholly-owned by Mr. Hisashi Akazawa until May 3,
2007. ILH presently has two direct wholly-owned subsidiaries, Junan Hongrun and Luotian Lorain, and
three indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries through Junan Hongrun, which are Beijing Lorain, Dongguan
Lorain, and Shandong Greenpia Foodstuff Co., Ltd. ( Shandong Greenpia ).

In addition, the Company directly and indirectly has 80.2% ownership of Shandong Lorain. The rest of the
19.8%, which is owned by the State under the name of Shandong Economic Development Investment Co.
Ltd., is not included as a part of the Group.

On April 9, 2009, the Company, through its Junan Hongrun subsidiary, invested cash to establish
Dongguan Lorain. Dongguan Lorain is indirectly 100% beneficially owned by the Company.

On June 28, 2010, the Company signed an equity transfer agreement with Shandong Greenpia. Shandong
Greenpia was originally directly owned by Taebong Inc. and Shandong Luan Trade Company. The
Company paid $2,100,000 to Korean Taebong Inc. for 50% equity of Shandong Greenpia on September
20, 2010. On September 23, 2010, the Company issued 731,707 shares of restricted stock at an agreed
price of $2.87 per share to the owner of Shandong Luan Trade Company, Mr. Ji Zhenwei, for the
remaining 50% equity of Shandong Greenpia. Since September 23, 2010, Shandong Greenpia was directly
owned by both Junan Hongrun and ILH. As a result, Shandong Greenpia is 100% owned by the Company.
Accordingly, the Company booked a gain of $383,482 which is included in the statement of income as
other income.

Reverse-Merger

On May 3, 2007, the Company entered into a share exchange agreement with ILH whereby the Company
consummated its acquisition of ILH by issuance of 697,663 Series B voting convertible preferred shares to
the shareholders of ILH in exchange of 5,099,503 ILH shares. Concurrently on May 3, 2007, the
Company also entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain investors and Mr. Hisashi
Akazawa and Mr. Si Chen (each a beneficial owner ) whereby the Company issued 319,913 (after
reverse-split at 32.84 from 10,508,643) common shares to its shareholders as consideration of the

14
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Company s reverse-merger with Lorain.

The share exchange transaction is sometimes referred to hereafter as the reverse-merger transaction. The
share exchange transaction has been accounted for as a recapitalization of ALN where the Company (the
legal acquirer) is considered the accounting acquiree and ILH (the acquiree) is considered the accounting
acquirer. As a result of this transaction, the Company is deemed to be a continuation of the business of
ILH.

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements are those of the accounting acquirer,
ILH. The historical stockholders equity of the accounting acquirer prior to the share exchange has been
retroactively restated as if the share exchange transaction occurred as of the beginning of the first period
presented. See also Note 13 Capitalization.

7
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)

Business Activities

The Company develops, manufactures, and sells convenience foods (including ready-to-cook (or RTC)
foods; ready-to-eat (or RTE) foods and meals ready-to-eat (or MRE); chestnut products; and frozen foods,
in hundreds of varieties. The Company operates through indirect Chinese subsidiaries. The products are
sold in domestic markets as well as exported to foreign countries and regions such as Japan, Korea and
Europe.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Method of Accounting

The Company maintains its general ledger and journals with the accrual method accounting for financial
reporting purposes. The financial statements and notes are representations of management. Accounting
policies adopted by the Company conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
of America and have been consistently applied in the presentation of financial statements, which are
compiled on the accrual basis of accounting.

The Company regrouped certain accounts in its presentation of changes in assets and liabilities in the
statement of cash flows for the period ended September 30, 2013 in order to be consistent with the
presentation provided for the year ended December 31, 2012. There was no impact in earnings for the
regrouping.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements which include the Company and its subsidiaries are compiled in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. All significant
inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated. The consolidated financial statements
include 100% of assets, liabilities, and net income or loss of those wholly-owned subsidiaries; ownership
interests of minority investors are recorded as minority interests.

As of September 30, 2013, the detailed identities of the consolidating subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Attributable equity Registered
Name of Company incorporation interest % capital
Shandong Lorain Co., Ltd PRC 80.2 $ 13,181,950
Luotian Lorain Co., Ltd PRC 100 4,019,743
Junan Hongrun Foodstuff Co., Ltd PRC 100 48,758,230
Beijing Lorain Co., Ltd PRC 100 1,629,620
Shandong Greenpia Foodstuff Co.,Ltd PRC 100 2,503,096
Dongguan Lorain Co,,Ltd PRC 100 162,962
International Lorain Holding Inc. Cayman Islands 100 50,711,737

Use of estimates

16
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The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Management makes these estimates using the best information available at the time the estimates are
made; however actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

8
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months
or less to be cash equivalents.

Investment securities

The Company classifies securities it holds for investment purposes into trading or available-for-sale.
Trading securities are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term. All
securities not included in trading securities are classified as available-for-sale.

Trading and available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses on
trading securities are included in the net income. Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of the related
tax effect, on available for sale securities are excluded from net income and are reported as a separate
component of other comprehensive income until realized. Realized gains and losses from the sale of
available-for-sale securities are determined on a specific-identification basis.

A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale security below cost that is deemed to be other-than-
temporary results in a reduction in carrying amount to fair value. The impairment is charged as an expense
to the statement of income and comprehensive income and a new cost basis for the security is established.
To determine whether impairment is other-than-temporary, the Company considers whether it has the
ability and intent to hold the investment until a market price recovery and considers whether evidence
indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the contrary. Evidence
considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the severity and duration of the
impairment, changes in value subsequent to year end, and forecasted performance of the investee.

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related available-for-sale security as
an adjustment to yield using the effective-interest method. Dividend and interest income are recognized
when earned.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized and carried at the original invoice amount less allowance for any
uncollectible amounts. An estimate for doubtful accounts is made when collection of the full amount is no
longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.

Inventories

Inventories consisting of finished goods and raw materials are stated at the lower of cost or market value.
Finished goods are comprised of direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of overhead.

Customer deposits and advances to suppliers

Customer deposits were received from customers in connection with orders of products to be delivered in
future periods.

18
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Advance to suppliers is a good faith deposit paid to the supplier for the purpose of committing the supplier
to provide product promptly upon delivery of the Company s purchase order for raw materials, supplies,
equipment, building materials etc. Pursuant to the Company s arrangements with its suppliers, this deposit
is generally 20% of the total amount contracted for. This type of transaction is classified as a prepayment
category under the account name Advance to Suppliers until such time as the Company s purchase order is
delivered, at which point this account is reduced by reclassification of the applicable amount to the
appropriate asset account such as inventory or fixed assets or construction in progress.

9
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)

Property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided over their

estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method with a salvage value of 10%. Estimated useful lives
of the plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Landscaping, plant and tree 30 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years
Office equipment 5 years

The cost and related accumulated depreciation of assets sold or otherwise retired are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss is included in the statement of income. The cost of maintenance and repairs
is charged to income as incurred, whereas significant renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents direct and indirect construction or acquisition costs. The construction
in progress is transferred to plant and equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided until the asset is completed
and ready for intended use.

Land Use Rights

Land use rights are carried at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over a specified period.
Amortization is provided using the straight-line method over 40-50 years.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The long-lived assets held by the Company are reviewed in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board ( FASB ) Accounting Standards Codification ( ASC ) Subtopic 360-10-35, Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable. It is reasonably possible

that these assets could become impaired as a result of technology or other industry changes. Impairment is
present if carrying amount of an asset is less than its undiscounted cash flows to be generated.

If an asset is considered impaired, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the fair market value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The Company believes no impairment has occurred to its
assets during 2013 and 2012.

Advertising

All advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
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(n) Shipping and handling
All shipping and handling are expensed as incurred.
(o) Research and development
All research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

10
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)

(p) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of contributions under defined contribution retirement plans to the relevant
authorities are charged to the consolidated statement of income as incurred.

(q) Income taxes

The Company accounts for income tax using an asset and liability approach and allows for recognition of
deferred tax benefits in future years. Under the asset and liability approach, deferred taxes are provided for
the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. A valuation allowance is
provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not these items will either expire before the
Company is able to realize their benefits, or that future realization is uncertain.

The Company has implemented ASC Topic 740, Accounting for Income Taxes. Income tax liabilities
computed according to the United States and People s Republic of China (PRC) tax laws are provided for
the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consists of taxes currently due plus
deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the basis of fixed assets and intangible assets for
financial and tax reporting. The deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return
consequences of those differences, which will be either taxable or deductible when the assets and
liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred taxes also are recognized for operating losses that are
available to offset future income taxes. A valuation allowance is created to evaluate deferred tax assets if it

is more likely than not that these items will either expire before the Company is able to realize that tax
benefit, or that future realization is uncertain.

Effective January 1, 2008, PRC government implemented a new 25% tax rate across the board for all
enterprises regardless of whether domestic or foreign enterprise without any tax holiday which is defined
as "two-year exemption followed by three-year half exemption" hitherto enjoyed by tax payers. As a result
of the new tax law of a standard 25% tax rate, tax holidays terminated as of December 31, 2007. However,
PRC government has established a set of transition rules to allow enterprises already started tax holidays
before January 1, 2008, to continue enjoying the tax holidays until being fully utilized.

The Company is subject to United States Tax according to Internal Revenue Code Sections 951 and 957.
Corporate income tax is imposed on progressive rates in the range of: -

Taxable Income

Rate Over But Not Over Of Amount Qver
15% 0 50,000 0
25% 50,000 75,000 50,000
34% 75,000 100,000 75,000
39% 100,000 335,000 100,000
34% 335,000 10,000,000 335,000
35% 10,000,000 15,000,000 10,000,000
38% 15,000,000 18,333,333 15,000,000
35% 18,333,333 - -
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(r)  Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves are referring to the amount appropriated from the net income in accordance
with laws or regulations, which can be used to recover losses and increase capital, as approved,
and are to be used to expand production or operations. The Company transferred $0 and
$2,264,420 from retained earnings to statutory reserves for the period ended September 30, 2013
and year ended December 31, 2012. PRC laws prescribe that an enterprise operating at a profit,
must appropriate, on an annual basis, an amount equal to 10% of its profit. Such an appropriation
is necessary until the reserve reaches a maximum that is equal to 50% of the enterprise s PRC

registered capital.
11
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)

Foreign currency translation

The accompanying financial statements are presented in United States dollars. The functional currency of
the Company is the Renminbi (RMB). The financial statements are translated into United States dollars
from RMB at year-end exchange rates as to assets and liabilities and average exchange rates as to
revenues and expenses. Capital accounts are translated at their historical exchange rates when the capital
transactions occurred.

9/30/2013  630/2013 12/31/2012 9/30/2012  6/30/2012

Year end RMB : US$ exchange rate 6.1364 6.1732 6.3011 6.3190 6.3089
Average yearly RMB : US$ exchange
rate 6.2132 6.2395 6.3034 6.3085 6.3027

The RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currency and all foreign exchange transactions must take
place through authorized institutions. No representation is made that the RMB amounts could have been,
or could be, converted into US Dollars at the rates used in translation.

Revenue recognition

The Company's revenue recognition policies are in compliance with Staff accounting bulletin (SAB) 104.
Sales revenue is recognized at the date of shipment to customers when a formal arrangement exists, the
price is fixed or determinable, the delivery is completed, no other significant obligations of the Company
exist and collectibility is reasonably assured. Payments received before all of the relevant criteria for
revenue recognition are satisfied are recorded as unearned revenue.

The Company's revenue consists of invoiced value of goods, net of a value-added tax (VAT). The
Company allows its customers to return products if they are defective. However, this rarely happens and
amounts returned have been de minimis.

The Company gradually switched its sales model from direct sales to third party distributor model and
issues 1% sales incentive to distributors. The Company modified its accounting policy for the recognition
of revenue accordingly. Given the circumstances of how the Company conducts its incentive program, the
Company books the payments settled in cash as a contra account to Gross Revenue, and includes the
amount in its reported net revenue . The Company has considered the guidance in FASB ASC 605-50
(EITF 01-9) and will account for its sales incentive program accordingly.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net
income by the sum of the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding and potential dilutive
securities during the year. During the period ended September 30, 2013, no warrants were issued nor
options were granted. For the year ended December 31, 2010, 81,155 warrants were issued to certain
service providers. For the year ended December 31, 2009, 1,334,573 stock options were granted to
employees pursuant to the Company s equity incentive plan; 2,255,024 warrants were issued to investors in
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connection with a PIPE financing. These warrants and options could be potentially dilutive if the market
price of the Company s common stock exceeds the exercise price for these securities.

The Company computes earnings per share ( EPS ) in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 128, Earnings per share ( SFAS No. 128 ), and SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 98 ( SAB
98 ). SFAS No. 128 requires companies with complex capital structures to present basic and diluted EPS.
Basic EPS is measured as the income or loss available to common shareholders divided by the weighted
average common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS is similar to basic EPS but presents the
dilutive effect on a per share basis of potential common shares (e.g., convertible securities, options, and
warrants) as if they had been converted at the beginning of the periods presented, or issuance date, if later.

12
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)

Potential common shares that have an anti-dilutive effect (i.e., those that increase income per share or
decrease loss per share) are excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS.

(v) Financial Instruments

The Company s financial instruments, including cash and equivalents, accounts and other receivables,
accounts and other payables, accrued liabilities and short-term debt, the carrying amounts approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities. ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures,
requires disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments held by the Company. ASC Topic 825,
Financial Instruments, defines fair value, and establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosures

of fair value measurement that enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measures. The carrying
amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for receivables and current liabilities each qualify as
financial instruments and are a reasonable estimate of their fair values because of the short period of time
between the origination of such instruments and their expected realization and their current market rate of
interest. The three levels of valuation hierarchy are defined as follows:

e Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.

¢ Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially
the full term of the financial instrument.

¢ Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The Company analyzes all financial instruments with features of both liabilities and equity under ASC 480,
Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity, and ASC 815.

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company did not identify any assets and liabilities that were
required to be presented on the balance sheet at fair value.

The following tables present the Company s financial assets and liabilities at fair value in accordance to ASC 820-10:

At September 30, Quoted in Significant
2013: Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Financial assets:
Cash $ 33,160,895 $ -3 - $ 33,160,895
Restricted Cash 1,454,114 - - 1,454,114
Total financial assets $ 34,615,009 $ - $ - $ 34,615,009

Financial liabilities:
Notes payable $ - $ -3 - $ 4
Total financial liabilities $ - $ $ $
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Stated in US Dollars)
At December 31, Quoted in Significant
2012: Active Markets Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Financial assets:
Cash $ 32,345,603 $ -3 - $ 32,345,603
Restricted Cash 3,998,956 - - 3,998,956
Total financial assets $ 36,344,559 $ - $ - $ 36,344,559
Financial liabilities:
Notes payable $ - $ -3 - $ 4
Total financial liabilities $ -3 - % - $ -

(w) Commitments and contingencies

Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties and other
sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the
assessment can be reasonably estimated.

(x) Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is defined to include all changes in equity except those resulting from investments
by owners and distributions to owners. Among other disclosures, all items that are required to be
recognized under current accounting standards as components of comprehensive income are required to be
reported in a financial statement that is presented with the same prominence as other financial statements.
The Company s current component of other comprehensive income includes the foreign currency
translation adjustment and unrealized gain or loss.

The Company uses FASB ASC Topic 220, Reporting Comprehensive Income . Comprehensive income is
comprised of net income and all changes to the statements of stockholders equity, except the changes in
paid- in capital and distributions to stockholders due to investments by stockholders. Comprehensive
income for the periods ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 included net income and foreign currency
translation adjustments.

(v) Recent accounting pronouncements

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-01, Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities ( ASU 2013-01 ). The Update clarifies that ordinary trade receivables and receivables
are not in the scope of Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210):
Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. Specifically, Update 2011-11 applies only to
derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse purchase agreements, and securities borrowing and
securities lending transactions that are either offset in accordance with specific criteria contained in FASB
Accounting Standards Codification® or subject to a master netting arrangement or similar agreement. The
amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning
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on or after January 1, 2013. Management does not expect the adoption of this standard has a significant
effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

For public entities, the amendments that are subject to the transition guidance is effective for fiscal periods
beginning after December 15, 2012. Management does not expect the adoption of this standard has a
significant effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income ( ASU 2013-02 ). The amendments require an organization to:

a. Present (either on the face of the statement where net income is presented or in the notes) the effects
on the line items of net income of significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income but only if the item reclassified is required under U.S. GAAP to be
reclassified to net income in its entirety in the same reporting period.

b.  Cross-reference to other disclosures currently required under U.S. GAAP for other reclassification
items (that are not required under U.S. GAAP) to be reclassified directly to net income in their
entirety in the same reporting period. This would be the case when a portion of the amount
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is initially transferred to a balance
sheet account (e.g., inventory for pension-related amounts) instead of directly to income or expense.

14
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)
The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012, for public companies.
Management does not expect the adoption of this standard has a significant effect on the Company s consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-03, Clarifying the Scope and Applicability of a Particular
Disclosure to Nonpublic Entities ( ASU 2013-03 ). The amendment clarifies that the requirement to disclose the level
of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurements are categorized in their entirety (as Level 1,
Level 2, or Level 3) does not apply to private companies and nonpublic not-for-profits for items that are not measured

at fair value in the statement of financial position, but for which fair value is disclosed. The amendments are effective
upon issuance. Management does not expect the adoption of this standard has a significant effect on the Company s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04, Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date ( ASU 2013-04 ). The
update provides guidance for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and
several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation within the scope of this ASU is fixed at the
reporting date, except for obligations addressed within existing guidance in US GAAP. The guidance requires an
entity to measure those obligations as the sum of the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its
arrangement among its co-obligors and any additional amount the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its
co-obligors. The guidance in this ASU also requires an entity to disclose the nature and amount of the obligation as
well as other information about those obligations. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. Management does not expect the adoption of
this standard will have a significant effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05, Parent s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment
upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a
Foreign Entity ( ASU 2013-05 ). The ASU clarifies that when a parent entity ceases to have a controlling financial
interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business (other than a sale of in substance real
estate or conveyance of oil and gas mineral rights) within a foreign entity, the parent is required to apply the guidance

in Accounting Standards Codification 830-30 to release any related cumulative translation adjustment into net income.
The ASU provides that the cumulative translation adjustment should be released into net income only if the sale or
transfer results in the complete or substantially complete liquidation of the foreign entity in which the subsidiary or
group of assets had resided. The amendments take effect prospectively for public companies for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2013, and interim reporting periods within those years. Management does not expect the adoption

of this standard will have a significant effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-07, Liquidation Basis of Accounting ( ASU 2013-07 ). The ASU
requires an entity to prepare its financial statements using the liquidation basis of accounting when liquidation is
imminent. Liquidation would be considered imminent when the likelihood is remote that the reporting entity would
return from liquidation and either: (a) a plan for liquidation has been approved by the person or persons with the
authority to make such a plan effective and the likelihood is remote that the execution of the plan will be blocked by

other parties or the entity will return from liquidation, or (b) a plan for liquidation is imposed by other forces, and the
likelihood is remote that the entity will return from liquidation. If a plan for liquidation was specified in an entity's
governing documents at its inception (for example, limited-life entities), then liquidation would be imminent only if

the approved plan for liquidation differs from the plan specified at the entity s inception. The amendments take effect

for all entities reporting under U.S. GAAP, except investment companies that are regulated under the Investment
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Company Act of 1940. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2013, and
interim reporting periods therein. Early adoption is permitted. Management does not expect the adoption of this
standard will have a significant effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)
As of September 30, 2013, there are no other recently issued accounting standards not yet adopted that would have a
material effect on the Company s consolidated financial statements

3. RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted Cash represents interest bearing deposits placed with banks to secure banking facilities in the form of
loans and notes payable. The restriction of funds is based on time. The funds that collateralize loans are held for
60 days in savings account that pay interest at the prescribed national daily savings account rate. For funds that
underline notes payable, the cash is deposited in six month time deposits that pay interest at the national time
deposit rate.

4. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

9/30/2013 12/31/2012

Trade accounts receivable $ 45928,595 $ 49,177,915
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (456,163) (443,898)

$ 45472432 $ 48,734,017
Allowance for bad debt: 9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Beginning balance $ (443,898) $ (379,693)
Additions to allowance (12,265) (64,205)
Bad debt written-off -
Ending balance $ (456,163) $ (443,898)

The Company offers credit terms of between 30 to 60 days to most of their domestic customers, including
supermarkets and wholesalers, around 90 days to most of their international customers, and between O to 15
days for most of the third-party distributors the Company works with.

S. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Advances to employees for job/travel disbursements 877,053 79,367
Amount due by a non-related enterprise 335,027 326,270
Other non-related receivables 100,073 76,168
Other related receivables 149,371 99,263
Short-term investment sale receivable 4,395,093 4,280,212

$ 5856617 $ 4,861,280
Advances to employees for job/travel disbursements consisted of advances to employees for transportation, meals,
client entertainment, commissions, and procurement of certain raw materials. The advances issued to employees may
be carried for extended periods of time because employees may spend several months out in the field working to
procure new sales contracts or fulfill existing contracts.

Specifically, the company uses every available employee to arrange purchases with desirable chestnut or other raw
material growers. However, because many of these growers are in rural farming areas of China where traditional
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banking and credit arrangements are difficult to implement, the Company must utilize cash purchases and also must
contract for its future needs by placing a good faith deposit in cash with the growers.
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Stated in US Dollars)
However none of these advances to employees for delivery to the growers on behalf of the Company are personal
loans to the employees. Advances to employees for purchase of materials in other receivables are adjusted to advances
to suppliers as of September 30, 2013.

Related party receivable consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Chen, Si $ 67,890 $ 67,523
You, Huadong 81,481 31,740
$ 149,371 $ 99,263

Related party receivable represented advances issued by management for job or travel disbursement in the
normal course of business. The receivable had no impact on earnings. As with other employees, officers sign
notes when cash is issued to them as job or travel disbursement.

In order to satisfy certain criteria for obtaining the long-term loan with DEG, as noted in footnote 12, Junan
Hongrun lent money to Mr. You, Huadong to purchase life insurance.

Related party receivable amounts are disclosed as other related receivables in other receivables.

On March 13, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with Jiangsu Heng An Industrial Investment Group
Co., Ltd. to sell the Company s short-term investment in the amount of $ 7,764,577 (RMB 49,604,000) of a
parcel of land located in Junan Town, Shandong Province, to construct residential buildings. The land was sold
to Jiangsu Heng An at a total sale price of RMB 69,604,000 and a guaranteed gross profit of RMB 20,000,000
without consideration of profit/(loss) of the residential building project. The gain on the sale of the short-term
investment excluding taxes payable was recorded as other income on the statements of income and
comprehensive income. Title of the land transferred from the Company to Jiangsu Heng An with receipt of an
initial deposit of RMB 15,000,000. As of September 30, 2013, a total of RMB 42,029,955 has been received and
RMB 26,970,045 (USD 4,368,892) is classified as Other Receivable. According to the contract, the Company
will be entitled to receive RMB 9,000,000 within 5 days after the title transfer and construction approval is
complete, and RMB 27,000,000 within 5 days after the residential building main frame is completed

6. INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Raw materials $ 22961,563 $ 18,700,879
Finished goods 30,904,264 19,371,825

$ 53,865,827 $§ 38,072,704
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:
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AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Stated in US Dollars)
9/30/2013 12/31/2012
At Cost:
Buildings $ 80,980,849 $ 78,730,172
Landscaping, plant and tree 10,927,506 7,943,605
Machinery and equipment 12,187,904 11,374,635
Office equipment 661,916 363,306
Motor vehicles 580,101 839,874

$ 105,338,276 $ 99,251,592
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Buildings (7,435,742) (5,911,972)
Landscaping, plant and tree (2,829,759) (2,108,661)
Machinery and equipment (6,666,672) (5,842,946)
Office equipment (508,715) (221,800)
Motor vehicles (326,828) (526,487)

(17,767,716) (14,611,866)
$ 87,570,560 $ 84,639,726

Landscaping, plants, and trees accounts for the orchards that the Company has developed for agricultural
operations. These orchards as well as the young trees which were purchased as nursery stock are capitalized into
fixed assets. The depreciation is then calculated on a 30-year straight-line method when production in
commercial quantities begins. The orchards have begun production in small quantities and the Company has
accounted for depreciation commencing July 1, 2010. During the period ended September 30, 2013, the
Company purchased three greenhouses to grow seasonal crops in order to lower cost.

LAND USE RIGHTS, NET

Land use rights consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Land use rights, at cost $ 17,526,369 $ 6,192,379
Utilities rights, at cost 50,693 49,368
Software, at cost 59,244 57,695
Patent, at cost 1,537 1,497
17,637,843 6,300,939
Less: Accumulated amortization (1,206,109) (1,004,271)

$ 16,431,734 $ 5,296,668

All lands are owned by the government in China. Land use rights represent the Company s purchase of usage
rights for a parcel of land for a specified duration of time, typically 50 years. The land use rights are then
amortized over the period of usage. Amortization expense for the three month periods ended September 30,
2013 and 2012 were $103,369 and $32,464, respectively. Amortization expense for the nine month periods
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 were $201,837 and $127,284, respectively.
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Short-term bank loans consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

(Stated in US Dollars)

Loan from Junan County Industrial and Commercial Bank of

China,
Interest rate at 6.44% per annum; due 1/8/2013
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 4/10/2013
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 4/19/2013
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 4/24/2013
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 5/17/2013
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 2/21/2014
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 10/16/2013
Interest rate at 6.16% per annum; due 10/21/2013
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 12/18/2013
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 1/8/2014
Interest rate at 5.88% per annum; due 10/29/2014

Loan from Linyi Commercial Bank,
Interest rate at 12.136% per annum due 1/10/2013
Interest rate at 1.512% per annum due 1/9/2014
Interest rate at 1.26% per annum due 1/10/2014

Loan from China Minsheng Bank Corporation, Linyi Branch
Interest rate at 7.8% per annum due 8/29/2013
Interest rate at 7.8% per annum due 2/26/2014

Loan from China Agricultural Bank, Luotian Branch
Interest rate at 6.372% per annum due 9/12/2012
Interest rate at 8.4% per annum due 3/3/2013
Interest rate at 8.4% per annum due 6/3/2013
Interest rate at 8.4% per annum due 9/3/2013
Interest rate at 8.4% per annum due 9/3/2013
Interest rate at 8.4% per annum due 9/3/2013

China Agricultural Development Bank
Interest rate at 8.4% per annum due 1/3/2014
Interest rate at 8.4% per annum due 8/19/2014

Bank of Beijing,
Variable Interest rate, due 6/29/2013
Interest rate at 7.2% per annum due 6/19/2014
19

Remark

9/30/2013

4,074,050
1,108,142
1,075,549
1,466,658
1,140,734

684,440

1,629,620
1,466,658

2,444,430

1,629,620
1,629,620

651,848
814,810

1,303,696

12/31/2012

1,031,567
1,142,658
999,825
634,810
1,348,971

714,161

2,380,537

158,702
317,405
1,110,917

1,269,620
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Shenzhen Development Bank,
Interest rate at 6.16% per annum due 1/30/2013
Interest rate at 6.04% per annum due 9/6/2013
Interest rate at 6.71% per annum due 10/23/2013

Luotian Sanligiao Credit Union,
Interest rate at 9.360% per annum due 1/6/2013
Interest rate at 7.80% per annum due 1/6/2014

Beijing International Trust Co., Ltd.,
Variable interest rate, due 9/16/2013
Interest rate at 6.00% per annum due 9/23/2014

Weihai City Commercial Bank,
Interest rate at 6.90% per annum due 3/7/2013

Bank of Ningbo ,
Interest rate at 6.71% per annum due 9/27/2013
Interest rate at 7.20% per annum due 9/25/2014

Hankou Bank, Guanshan Branch,
Interest rate at 6.00% per annum due 9/6/2013
Interest rate at 6.60% per annum due 9/14/2013
Interest rate at 6.60% per annum due 9/12/2014

China Agricultural Bank, Shandong Branch
Interest rate at 10.2% per annum due 7/16/2013
Interest rate at 7.2% per annum due 8/29/2013
Interest rate at 7.2% per annum due 8/22/2014

Ping An Bank, Jinan Branch
Interest rate at 6.72% per annum due 1/3/2014
Interest rate at 6.72% per annum due 5/2/2014
Luzhen Credit Union,
Interest rate at 10.40% per annum due 2/27/2014

Postal Savings Bank of China
Interest rate at 6.60% per annum due 11/26/2013

China Construction Bank

Variable Interest rate, due 3/31/2014
Variable Interest rate, due 4/30/2014

20

977,772

1,629,620

1,629,620

1,629,620

1,629,620

1,140,734
814,810

488,886
651,848
798,514

521,478

$ 33,032,397

1,110,917
793,512
634,810

952,215

1,587,024

3,174,049

1,587,024

793,512
1,587,024

3,174,049
1,587,024

634,810

$ 28,725,143
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The short-term loans, which are denominated in the functional currency Renminbi (RMB), were primarily
obtained for general working capital. If not otherwise indicated in the below remarks, short-term loans are
guaranteed by either companies within the group or personnel who hold a management role within the group.

Remark:

A: Accounts receivable in the amount of was used as collateral for this loan.

B: Junan Hongrun Foodstuff Co., Ltd. s factory was used as collateral for this loan
C: Personal guarantee from Mr. Si Chen was used as collateral for this loan

10. TAXES PAYABLES

Taxes payable consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

11.

9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Value added tax payable $ 19,685 $ 428,889
Corporate income tax payable 1,500,760 3,370,655
Employee payroll tax withholding 5,595 4,936
Property tax payable 70,824 55,877
Stamp tax payable 1,479 1,440
Business tax payable 166,492 154,112
Land use tax payable 41,190 65,525
Import tariffs 135 454
Capital gain tax payable 948,243 923,458

ACCRUED EXPENSES

$ 2,754,403 $ 5,005,346

AND OTHER PAYABLE

Accrued expenses and other payables consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31,

2012:
9/30/2013 12/31/2012

Accrued salaries and wages $ - $ 3,174
Accrued utility expenses 42,486 55,639
Accrued interest expenses 907,603 219,630
Accrued transportation expenses 268,576 290,228
Other accruals 29,962 103,827
Business and other taxes 151,297 182,378
Disbursement payable 939,573 87,078
Accrued staff welfare 331,905 37,843

$ 2,671,402 $ 979,797
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12. LONG-TERM DEBT

Current portions of long-term debt consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Loans from China Development Bank
Interest rate at 7.07% per annum due 5/20/2013 $ - $ 158,702
Interest rate at 7.07% per annum due 11/20/2013 325,924 317,405
Interest rate at 7.07% per annum due 6/20/2014 977,772 -
Loans from Deutsche Investitions-und Entwicklungsgesellschaft mbH
( DEG )
Interest rate at 5.510% per annum due 3/15/2013 - 1,875,000
Interest rate at 5.510% per annum due 9/15/2013 - 1,875,000
Interest rate at 5.510% per annum due 3/15/2014 1,875,000 -
Interest rate at 5.510% per annum due 9/15/2014 1,875,000

$ 5,053,696 $ 4,226,107
Non-current portions of long-term debt consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Loans from Deutsche Investitions-und Entwicklungsgesellschaft mbH
( DEG )
Interest rate at 5.510% per annum due 9/16/2016 5,625,000 10,097,340

Loans from China Development Bank
Interest rate at 7.07% per annum due 9/24/2015 3,422,202 4,284,966
$ 9,047,202 $ 14,382,306
The Company s loan with DEG began repaying the loan in semi-annual installments on September 15, 2012. As of
September 30, 2013, the Company has repaid $5,625,000 in principal. The loan was collateralized with the following
terms:

(a.) Create and register a first ranking mortgage in the amount of about USD 12,000,000 on its land and
building in favor of DEG.

(b.) Undertake to provide a share pledge of Mr. Si Chen shares in the sponsor in the amount of about USD
12,000,000 and being the majority shareholder in the sponsor in form and substance satisfactory to DEG

(c.) The total amount of the first ranking mortgage as indicated in the Loan Agreement (Article 12(1)(a)) and
the value of the pledged shares of Mr. Si Chen (Loan Agreement (Article 12(1)(a))) should be at least
USD 24,000,000.

(d.) Undertake to provide a guarantee from the Shareholder in form and substance satisfactory to DEG.
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Non-current portions of notes payable consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:
9/30/2013 12/31/2012
Note payable issued by Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Interest rate at 5.9% per annum due 12/28/2015 13,036,960 12,696,196

13.

Debenture issued by Guoyuan Securities Co., Ltd.
Interest rate at 10% per annum due 8/28/2016 16,296,200 -
$ 29,333,160 $ 12,696,196

CAPITALIZATION

Dating back to May 3, 2007, the Company underwent a reverse-merger and a concurrent financing transaction
that resulted in 24,923,178 shares of outstanding common stock that remained unchanged until through
December 31, 2007. In connection with the financing, the Company also issued 1,037,858 and 489,330 warrants
to the PIPE investors and placement agent, respectively. During 2008, several holders of warrants issued in
connection with the financing transaction exercised their rights to purchase shares at the prescribed exercise
price. The holders of the warrants exercised the right to purchase a total of 360,207 shares; however, because the
holders did not pay in cash for the warrants, 110,752 of those shares were cancelled as consideration in lieu of
the warrant holders paying in cash. Ultimately, 249,455 of new shares were issued to those who exercised their
warrant. The Company also made an adjustment to its outstanding share count for rounding errors as result of
the split and reverse splits made at the time of the reverse merger. The number of shares in the adjustment was
an addition of seven shares. The Company believes the adjustment of seven shares is immaterial to both prior
and current earnings per share calculation. As detailed in the table below, the total number of outstanding shares
at September 30, 2013 was 34,616,714.

During the year 2009, the Company issued 56,393 shares of stock to its employees and vendors and 5,011,169
shares to investors. The Company issued 1,334,573 stock options to employees on July 28, 2009; 1,753,909
shares of Series A warrants and 501,115 shares of Series B warrants were issued to investors on October 28,
2009.

During the year 2010, the Company issued 2,000 shares to a service provider on February 10, 2010 and 81,155
warrants to various service providers on January 5, 2010. The Company issued to investors 3,440,800 shares at
an agreed price of $2.80 per share for a PIPE financing on September 10, 2010. This financing brought
$8,955,730 net proceeds to the Company. The Company issued 5,000 shares to its employee on September 23,
2010. 731,707 shares of restricted stock were issued to the owner of Shandong Greenpia, Mr. Ji Zhenwei on
September 24, 2010 as part of acquisition cost.

For the year 2010, the Company transferred 5,161,176 from retained earnings to additional paid up capital and
2,445,262 from retained earnings to statutory reserve. These transfers are to be used for future company
development, recovery of losses and increase of capital, as approved, to expand production or operations.

For the year 2011, the Company transferred 2,636,160 from retained earnings to statutory reserve. These

transfers are to be used for future company development, recovery of losses and increase of capital, as approved,
to expand production or operations.
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For the year 2012, the Company issued 108,840 shares to its employees as employee stock compensation. The
Company transferred 2,264,420 from retained earnings to statutory reserve. These transfers are to be used for
future company development, recovery of losses and increase of capital, as approved, to expand production or
operations.
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American Lorain Corporation
Capitalization Reconciliation Table

Par value authorized

Issuance date

Shares outstanding

Common stock at 1/1/2009 200,000,000 25,172,640
New shares issued to employees and vendors during
2009 Various dates 56,393
New shares issued to PIPE investors 10/28/2009 5,011,169
New shares issued to service provider during 2010 2/10/2010 2,000
New shares issued to PIPE investors 9/10/2010 3,440,800
New shares issued to employee 9/23/2010 5,000
New shares issued as acquisition consideration 9/24/2010 731,707
New shares issued to service provider during 2011 5/5/2011 25,000
New shares issued to employees per stock incentive
plan 7/20/2011 27,092
New shares issued to employees per stock incentive
plan 11/21/2011 36,073
New shares issued to employees per stock incentive
plan 10/5/2012 108,840
Common stock at 9/30/2013 34,616,714
Number of warrants
Warrants and options or options Issuance date | Expiration date
Warrants issued to investors in 2007 PIPE 1,037,858 5/3/2007 5/2/2010
Warrants issued to placement agent in 2007 PIPE 489,330 5/3/2007 5/2/2010
Employee stock options 1,334,573 7/28/2009 7/27/2014
Warrants issued to investors in 2009 PIPE
- Series A 1,753,909 10/28/2009 4/28/2015
Warrants issued to investors in 2009 PIPE
- Series B 501,115 10/28/2009 10/28/2012
Issued to service provider A during 2010 50,722 1/5/2010 1/2/2014
Issued to service provider B during 2010 20,289 1/5/2010 1/2/2014
Issued to service provider C during 2010 10,144 1/5/2010 1/2/2014
Total warrants and options 5,197,940
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14. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The non-controlling interest represents the 19.8% equity of Shandong Lorain held by the Shandong Economic
Development Investment Corporation, which is a state-owned interest.
24
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15. SALES BY PRODUCT TYPE

Sales by categories of product consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and 2012:

Category 9/30/2013 9/30/2012

Chestnut $ 58,097,797 $ 62,947,404
Convenience food 40,662,258 50,913,992
Frozen food 23,218,511 22,069,023
Total $ 121,978,566 $ 135,930,419

Revenue by geography consisted of the following as of September 30, 2013 and 2012:

Country 9/30/2013 9/30/2012

Australia $ 20,154 $ 88,290
Belgium 4,048,525 3,521,931
Canada - -
China 91,475,565 102,058,747
Denmark - 53,878
France 1,360,662 1,725,334
Germany 1,125,698 1,096,314
Hong Kong 64,640 92,710
Indonesia - -
Israel 429,245 153,294
Japan 10,883,074 15,262,559
Malaysia 1,082,030 1,390,051
Netherlands 805,551 175,015
Philippines 382,991 -
Poland 115,250 213,769
Portugal 1,113,839 710,427
Singapore 1,472,920 668,390
South Korea 6,298,196 6,756,501
Spain - 194,521
Sweden - 33,045
Taiwan 43,986 371,362
Thailand 105,964 116,272
United Kingdom - 1,068,084
United States 1,135,706 179,925
Vietnam 14,570 -
Total $ 121,978,566 $ 135,930,419

16. INCOME TAXES

All of the Company s operations are in the PRC, and in accordance with the relevant tax laws and regulations of
PRC, the corporate income tax rate is 25%.
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The following tables provide the reconciliation of the differences between the statutory and effective tax
expenses for the periods ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:
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9/30/2013 9/30/2012
Income attributed to PRC $ 13,132,057 $ 18,078,289
Loss attributed to US (165,266) (517,568)
Income before tax 12,966,791 17,560,721
PRC Statutory Tax at 25% Rate 3,289,034 4,631,730
Effect of tax exemption granted - -
Income tax $ 3,289,034 $ 4,631,730

Per Share Effect of Tax Exemption
9/30/2013 9/30/2012

Effect of tax exemption granted $ $
Weighted-Average Shares Outstanding Basic 34,616,714 34,507,874
Per share effect $ 34,616,714 $ 34,507,874

The difference between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and the Company s effective tax rate was as follows
for the periods ended September 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 35% 35.00%
Lower rates in PRC, net -10% -10.00%
Tax holiday for foreign investments 0.37% 1.38%
The Company s effective tax rate 25.37% 26.38%

Effective January 1, 2008, the PRC government implemented a new 25% tax rate across the board for all enterprises
regardless of whether domestic or foreign enterprise without any tax holiday which is defined as two-year exemption
followed by three-year half exemption hitherto enjoyed by tax payers. As a result of the new tax law of a standard
25% tax rate, tax holidays were terminated as of December 31, 2007. However, PRC government has established a set
of transition rules to allow enterprises already started tax holidays before January 1, 2008, to continue enjoying the tax
holidays until being fully utilized.

The Company has accrued a deferred tax asset as a result of its net operating loss in and before September 30, 2013
because the Company planned to setup operations in the United States. The company anticipates that the operations
within the United States will generate income in the future so that it will be able to take full advantage of the accrued
asset. Accordingly the Company has not provided a valuation allowances for the accrued tax asset.

The Company s has detailed the tax rates for its subsidiaries for 2013 and 2012 in the following table.

China Income Tax Rate

Subsidiary 2013 2012
International Lorain 0% 0%
Junan Hongran 25% 25%
Luotian Lorain 25% 25%
Beijing Lorain 25% 25%
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25% 25%

25% 25%

25% 25%
26
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
Components of basic and diluted earnings per share were as follows:

3 months ended 9 months ended
September 30 September 30
013 012 013 012
Basic Earnings Per Share
Numerator

Net Income $ 4,256,690 $ 5,252,569 $ 9,274,971 $ 12,165,013

Income Available to

Common Stockholders $ 4,256,690 $ 5,252,569 $ 9,274,971 $ 12,165,013

Diluted Earnings Per Share
Numerator
Income Available to

Common Stockholders $ 4,256,690 $ 5,252,569 $ 9,274,971 $ 12,165,013

Income Available to
Common Stockholders on

Converted Basis $ 4,256,690% 5,252,569 $ 9,274,971 $ 12,165,013

Original Shares:
Additions from Actual Events

-Issuance of Common Stock 34,616,714 34,507,874 34,616,714 34,507,874

Basic Weighted Average

Shares Outstanding 34,616,714 34,507,874 34,616,714 34,507,874

Dilutive Shares:

Additions from Potential

Events

-Exercise of Investor

Warrants & Placement Agent

Warrants - - -
- Exercise of Employee &

Director Stock Options - - -
Diluted Weighted Average

Shares Outstanding: 34,616,714 34,507,874 34,616,714 34,507,874

Earnings Per Share
- Basic $ 0.12
- Diluted $ 0.12

0.15 $ 0.27
0.15 $ 0.27

©“ &
“ &

0.35
0.35
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Weighted Average Shares

Outstanding
- Basic 34,616,714 34,507,874 34,616,714 34,507,874
- Diluted 34,616,714 34,507,874 34,616,714 34,507,874

18. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION

On July 27, 2009, the Company s Board of Directors adopted the American Lorain Corporation 2009 Incentive
Stock Plan (the Plan ). The Plan provides that the maximum number of shares of the Company s common stock
that may be issued under the Plan is 2,500,000 shares. The Company s employees, directors, and service
providers are eligible to participate in the Plan.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company recorded a total of $166,346 of shared based
compensation expense. The Company issued warrants that upon exercise would result in the issuance of
1,334,573 common shares. These stock options vest over three years, where 33.33% vest annually. The expense
related to the stock options was $107,375. The Company also recorded expense of $58,971 for the issuance of
56,393 common shares to participants, respectively. The common shares vested immediately. Given the
materiality and nature of share based compensation, the entire expense has been recorded as general and
administrative expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company recorded a total of $890,209
stock option and its related general and administrative expenses.
27
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During the period ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded a total of $503,493 and $644,243 stock
option and its related general and administrative expenses.

During the period ended September 30, 2013, the Company did not grant any stock option.

The range of the exercise prices of the stock options granted since inception of the plan are shown in the following
table:

Price Range Number of Shares
$0 - $4.99 1,334,573 shares
$5.00 - $9.99 0 shares
$10.00 - $14.99 0 shares

No tax benefit has yet to be accrued or realized. For the period ended September 30, 2013, the Company has yet to
repatriate its earnings. Accordingly it has not recognized any deferred tax assets or liability in regards to benefits
derived from the issuance of stock options.

The Company used the Black-Scholes Model to value the warrants granted. The following shows the weighted
average fair value of the grants and the assumptions that were employed in the model:

2012 2011
Weighted-average fair value of grants: $ 1.3629 $ 1.1909
Risk-free interest rate: 0.33% 0.96%
Expected volatility: 59.93% 4.58%
Expected life in months: 36.00 36.00

19. LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a.) The Company entered into an operating lease agreement leasing a factory building located in Dongguan,
China. The lease was signed by Shandong Lorain on behalf of Dongguan Lorain and expires on August 9,

2018.

The minimum future lease payments for this property at September 30, 2013 are shown in the following

table:
From To Lease payment
7/1/2013 12/31/2013  $ 21,884
1/1/2014 12/31/2014 92,685
1/1/2015 12/31/2015 92,685
1/1/2016 12/31/2016 92,685
1/1/2017 12/31/2017 92,685
1/1/2018 8/9/2018 56,641

$ 449,265
The outstanding lease commitment as of September 30, 2013 was $449,265.
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The minimum future lease payments for this property at December 31, 2012 are shown in the following table:

From

1/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/1/2015
1/1/2016
1/1/2017
1/1/2018

To

12/31/2013  $
12/31/2014
12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
8/9/2018

$

Lease payment

87,536
92,685
92,685
92,685
92,685
56,641
514,917

The outstanding lease commitment as of December 31, 2012 was $514,917.

(b.) During the period ended September 30, 2013, the Company entered into three operating lease agreement
leasing three plots of land of which green houses are maintained to grow seasonal crops. The lease was
signed by Junan Hongrun Foodstuff Co., Ltd. and expires on April 25, 2033, May 19, 2033, and June 19,
2033, respectively.

From
9/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/1/2015
1/1/2016
1/1/2017
1/1/2018
1/1/2019
1/1/2020
1/1/2021
1/1/2022
1/1/2023
1/1/2024
1/1/2025
1/1/2026
1/1/2027
1/1/2028
1/1/2029
1/1/2030
1/1/2031
1/1/2032
1/1/2033

The outstanding lease commitment for the three greenhouses as of September 30, 2013 was $3,876,202.

The minimum future lease payments for this property at September 30, 2013 are shown in the following

table:

To
12/31/2013
12/31/2014
12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020
12/31/2021
12/31/2022
12/31/2023
12/31/2024
12/31/2025
12/31/2026
12/31/2027
12/31/2028
12/31/2029
12/31/2030
12/31/2031
12/31/2032
4/25/2033

Greenhouse 1

$ 19,693
78,128
78,128
78,128
78,128
78,128
78,128
78,128
78,128
78,128
85,773
89,289
89,289
89,289
89,289
89,289
89,289
89,289
89,289
89,289
42,261

$1,654,480

From
9/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/1/2015
1/1/2016
1/1/2017
1/1/2018
1/1/2019
1/1/2020
1/1/2021
1/1/2022
1/1/2023
1/1/2024
1/1/2025
1/1/2026
1/1/2027
1/1/2028
1/1/2029
1/1/2030
1/1/2031
1/1/2032
1/1/2033

To Greenhouse 2
12/31/2013 $ 23,974
12/31/2014 95,114
12/31/2015 95,114
12/31/2016 95,114
12/31/2017 95,114
12/31/2018 95,114
12/31/2019 95,114
12/31/2020 95,114
12/31/2021 95,114
12/31/2022 95,114
12/31/2023 102,527
12/31/2024 105,683
12/31/2025 105,683
12/31/2026 105,683
12/31/2027 105,683
12/31/2028 105,683
12/31/2029 105,683
12/31/2030 105,683
12/31/2031 105,683
12/31/2032 105,683
5/19/2033 50,322

$ 1,983,996

From
9/1/2013
1/1/2014
1/1/2015
1/1/2016
1/1/2017
1/1/2018
1/1/2019
1/1/2020
1/1/2021
1/1/2022
1/1/2023
1/1/2024
1/1/2025
1/1/2026
1/1/2027
1/1/2028
1/1/2029
1/1/2030
1/1/2031
1/1/2032
1/1/2033

To
12/31/2013
12/31/2014
12/31/2015
12/31/2016
12/31/2017
12/31/2018
12/31/2019
12/31/2020
12/31/2021
12/31/2022
12/31/2023
12/31/2024
12/31/2025
12/31/2026
12/31/2027
12/31/2028
12/31/2029
12/31/2030
12/31/2031
12/31/2032
6/19/2033

Greenhouse 3

$3,235
11,339
11,339
11,339
11,339
11,339
11,339
11,339
11,339
11,339
12,097
12,757
12,757
12,757
12,757
12,757
12,757
12,757
12,757
12,757
5,530
$237,726
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RISKS

A.

Credit risk

Since the Company s inception, the age of account receivables have been less than one year indicating that
the Company is subject to minimal risk borne from credit extended to customers.

Interest risk

The company subject to the interest rate risk when their short term loans become due and require
refinancing.

Economic and political risks

The Company s operations are conducted in the PRC. Accordingly, the Company s business, financial
condition, and results of operations may be influenced by changes in the political, economic, and legal
environments in the PRC.

The Company s operations in the PRC are subject to special considerations and significant risks not
typically associated with companies in North America and Western Europe. These include risks associated
with, among others, the political, economic and legal environment and foreign currency exchange. The
Company s results may be adversely affected by changes in the political and social conditions in the PRC,
and by changes in governmental policies with respect to laws and regulations, anti-inflationary measures,
currency conversion, remittances abroad, and rates and methods of taxation, among other things.

Environmental risks

The Company has procured environmental licenses required by the PRC government. The Company has
both a water treatment facility for water used in its production process and secure transportation to remove
waste off site. In the event of an accident, the Company has purchased insurance to cover potential
damage to employees, equipment, and local environment.

Inflation Risk

Management monitors changes in prices levels. Historically inflation has not materially impacted the

company s financial statements; however, significant increases in the price of raw materials and labor that

cannot be passed on the Company s customers could adversely impact the Company s results of operations.
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ITEM 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be
materially different from any future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by the
forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to the factors described in the
section captioned Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as anticipates, believes, could, estimat
expects, intends, may, plans, potential, predicts, projects, should, would and similar expressions i

forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and

are based on assumptions and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Given these uncertainties, you should not place

undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

Also, forward-looking statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this report. You
should read this report completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different
from what we expect.

Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements publicly, or to update
the reasons actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in any forward-looking statements, even if
new information becomes available in the future.

Overview

We are an integrated food manufacturing company with headquarters in Shandong Province, China. We develop,
manufacture and sell the following types of food products: chestnut products. convenience foods (including
ready-to-cook foods, ready-to-eat foods, and meals ready-to-eat); and frozen foods.

We conduct our production activities in China. Our products are sold in domestic markets as well as exported to
foreign countries and regions such as Japan, Korea and Europe. We believe that we are the largest processed chestnut
foods manufacturer in China. We have developed brand recognition for our chestnut products in China, Japan and
South Korea over the past 10 to 15 years. We produced over 50 high value-added processed chestnut products in the
third quarter of 2013. We derive most of our revenues from sales in China, Japan and South Korea. In 2013, our
primary strategy is to continue building our brand recognition in China through consistent marketing efforts towards
supermarkets, wholesalers, and significant customers, enhancing the cooperation with other manufacturers and
factories, and enhancing the turnover for our existing chestnut, convenience and frozen food products. In addition, we
are working to expand our marketing efforts in Asia, Europe and the Middle East. We currently have limited sales and
marketing activity in the United States, although our long-term plan is to significantly expand our activities there.

Sales continue to be heavily concentrated in the Asian regions, with mainland China, Japan and South Korea
accounting for 89.1% of total sales during the nine months ended September 30, 2013, as compared to 91.3% over the
same period of last year. In the fourth quarter, American Lorain expects to see higher demand for its chestnut products
as we enter traditionally strong quarter, as well as its convenience food products such as bean products, lunch boxes
and pickle vegetables.

Frozen foods sold primarily to select export markets in Europe and wholesale customers in China contributed
approximately 19.0% in revenues for the first nine months of 2013, compared with16.2% in the same period of 2012.
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Production Factors that Affect our Financial and Operational Condition

Our business depends on obtaining a reliable supply of various agricultural products, including chestnuts, vegetables,
fruits, red meat, fish, eggs, rice, flour and packaging products. During the third quarter of 2013, the cost of our raw
materials decreased from $42.6 million to $39.0 million, as compared to the third quarter of 2012, for an decrease of
approximately 8.5% . China currently faces high domestic inflation pressures, especially in agricultural products and
consumer foods. The prolonged continuation or worsening of such pressure may negatively affect our sales or
profitability. We may have to increase the number of our suppliers of raw materials and expand our own agricultural
operations in the future to meet growing production demands. Despite our efforts to control our supply of raw
materials and maintain good relationships with our suppliers, we could lose one or more of our suppliers at any time.
The loss of several suppliers may be difficult to replace and could increase our reliance on higher cost or lower quality
suppliers, which could negatively affect our profitability. In addition, if we have to increase the number of our
suppliers of raw materials in the future to meet growing production demands, we may not be able to locate new
suppliers who could provide us with sufficient materials to meet our needs. Any interruptions to, or decline in, the
amount or quality of our raw materials supply could materially disrupt our production and adversely affect our
business and financial condition and financial prospects.
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Seasonality

Chestnut season in China lasts from September to January. We purchase and produce raw chestnuts during these
months and store them in our refrigerated storage facilities throughout the year. Once we obtain a purchase order
during the rest of the year, we remove the chestnuts from storage, process them and ship them within one day of
production. Since most chestnuts are produced and sold in the fourth quarter, the Company generally performs best in
the fourth quarter.

Uncertainties that Affect our Financial Condition

We spend a significant amount of cash on our operations, principally to procure raw materials for our products. Many
of our suppliers, including chestnut, vegetable and fruit farmers, and suppliers of packaging materials, require us to
prepay for their supplies in cash or pay on the same day that such supplies are delivered to us. However, some of the
suppliers with whom we have a long-standing business relationship allow us to pay on credit. We fund the majority of
our working capital requirements out of cash flow generated from operations as well as bank loans. If we fail to
generate sufficient sales, or if our suppliers stop offering us credit terms, we may not have sufficient liquidity to fund
our operating costs and our business could be adversely affected.

We also fund approximately 25.5% of our working capital from the proceeds of short-term loans from Chinese banks
in the third quarter of 2013, as compared to 50.2% over the same period last year. We expect to continue to fund our
working capital requirements with such loans in the future. Such loans are generally secured by our fixed assets,
receivables and/or guarantees by third parties. Our balance from short-term bank loans as of September 30, 2013 was
approximately $33.0 million. The term of almost all such loans is one year or less. Historically, our lenders have
permitted us to roll over such loans on an annual basis. However, we may not have sufficient funds available to pay all
of our borrowings upon maturity, and our lenders may not permit us to roll over the loans in the future. Failure to roll
over our short-term borrowings at maturity or to service our debt could result in the imposition of penalties, including
increases in rates of interest, legal actions against us by our creditors, or even insolvency. In addition, we completed
two private placement financings in September 2010 and October 2009 with net proceeds of $9.0 million and $10.9
million, respectively, the proceeds of which were primarily used as working capital. We also secured a $15 million
loan from Deutsche Investitions- und Entwicklungsgesellshaft ( DEG ) in May 2010, which we have fully drawn down
as of December 2011.We can provide no assurances that we will be able to enter into any future financing or
refinancing agreements on terms favorable to us, especially considering the current instability of the capital markets.

We anticipate that our existing capital resources and cash flows from operations and current and expected short-term
bank loans will be adequate to satisfy our liquidity requirements for the next 12 months. However, if available
liquidity is not sufficient to meet our operating and loan obligations as they come due, our plans include obtaining
alternative financing arrangements or further reducing expenditures as necessary to meet our cash requirements.
However, there is no assurance that, if required, we will be able to raise additional capital or reduce discretionary
spending to provide the required liquidity. Currently, the capital markets for small capitalization companies are
extremely difficult and banking institutions have become stringent in their lending requirements. Accordingly, we
cannot be sure of the availability or terms of any third party financing.

The Company s operations in the PRC are subject to special considerations and significant risks not typically
associated with companies in North America and Western Europe. These include risks associated with, among others,
the political, economic and legal environment and foreign currency exchange. The Company s results may be
adversely affected by changes in the political and social conditions in the PRC, and by changes in governmental
policies with respect to laws and regulations, anti-inflationary measures, currency conversion, remittances abroad, and
rates and methods of taxation, among other things, as more fully described in the Company s Annual Report on Form
10-K.
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The crisis of the financial and credit markets worldwide in the second half of 2008 has led to a severe economic
recession worldwide. Furthermore, the on-going European debt crisis is still weighing on the global economy as well
as the financial market. The continuation or worsening of unfavorable economic conditions, including the on-going
global economy and capital markets disruptions, could have adverse impacts on our business, operating results or
financial conditions in a number of ways. For example, we may experience declines in revenues, profitability and cash
flows as a result of reduced orders, delays in receiving orders, delays or defaults in payment or other factors caused by
the economic problems of our customers and prospective customers. We may experience supply chain delays,
disruptions or other problems associated with financial constraints faced by our suppliers and subcontractors. In
addition, changes and volatility in the equity, credit and foreign exchange markets and in the competitive landscape
make it increasingly difficult for us to predict our revenues and earnings into the future.

In 2008 and 2009, some of our customers, including some of our large supermarket customers, delayed their payments
for up to 60 to 90 days beyond their term. Our cash flow suffered while waiting for such payments. Consequently, at
times we had to delay payments to our suppliers and to postpone business expansion as a result of these delayed
payments. Starting in 2008 and through 2012, we gradually shortened credit terms for many of our international and
domestic customers from between 30 and 180 days to between 30 and 60 days. Our large customers may fail to meet
these shortened credit terms, in which case we may not have sufficient cash flow to fund our operating costs and our
business could be adversely affected.
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Results of Operations
Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2012
The following table summarizes the results of our operations during the three month period ended September 30, 2013

and September 30, 2012, respectively, and provides information regarding the dollar and percentage increase or
(decrease) of the three month period ended September 30, 2013 compared to the three month period ended September

30, 2012.

(All amounts, other than
percentages, stated in U.S.

dollar)
Three months ended
September 30, Dollar($) Percentage
(%)
2,013 2,012 Increase Increase
(In US (In US (Decrease) (Decrease)
Dollar) Dollar)

Net revenues 53,103,910 57,972,627 (4,868,717) -8.4%
Cost of revenues (42,786,893) (45,583,295) 2,796,402 -6.1%
Gross profit 10,317,017 12,389,332 (2,072,315) -16.7%
Operating expenses
Selling and marketing expenses (2,174,055) (2,310,863) 136,808 -5.9%
General and administrative (1,418,386) (1,627,095) 208,709 -12.8%
expenses
Operating income 6,724,576 8,451,374 (1,726,798) -20.4%
Government subsidy income 344,447 281,374 63,073 22.4%
Interest income 37,880 2,886 34,994 1212.5%
Other income 1,107,944 44,472 1,063,472 2391.3%
Other expenses (50,329) (6,434) (43,895) 682.2%
Interest expense (2,444,169) (1,128,368)  (1,315,801) 116.6%
Earnings before tax 5,720,349 7,645,304 (1,924,955) -25.2%
Income tax (1,233,718) (2,037,590) 803,872 -39.5%
Income before minority interests 4,486,631 5,607,714 (1,121,083) -20.0%
Net income attributable to:
Common stock holders 4,256,690 5,252,569 (995,879) -19.0%
Minority interests 229,941 355,145 (125,204) -35.3%

Revenue

Net Revenues. Our net revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2013 amounted to $53.1 million, which
represents a decrease of approximately $4.9 million, or 8.4%, from the three-month period ended on September 30,
2012, in which our net revenue was $58.0 million. This decrease was attributable to the decreased revenues from sales
of our chestnut and convenience food products, as reflected in the following table:
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Three months ended

Category 9/30/2013 9/30/2012 Increase(decrea  Increase(decr
se) ease)
Chestnut 24,642,847 26,991,639 (2,348,792) -8.7%
Convenience food 19,571,519 23,155,522 (3,584,003) -15.5%
Frozen food 8,889,543 7,825,467 1,064,076 13.6%
Total 53,103,909 57,972,628 (4,868,719) -8.4%

Cost of Revenues. During the three months ended September 30, 2013, we experienced a decrease in cost of revenue,
which consists of raw materials, direct labor and manufacturing overhead expenses, of $2.8 million, in comparison to
the three months ended September 30, 2012, from approximately $45.6 million to $42.8 million, reflecting a decrease
of approximately 6.1% . Our raw material costs decreased by 3.6 million from $42.6 million during the three months
ended September 30, 2012 to $39.0 million during the three months ended September 30, 2013 due to lower
production volume.
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Gross Profit. Our gross profit decreased 2.1 million, or 16.7%, to 10.3 million for the three months ended September
30, 2013 from 12.4 million for the same period in 2012 as a result of lower revenues, offset by lower costs of
revenues, for the reasons indicated immediately above. Our gross margins decreased slightly from 21.4% to 19.4% for
the period ended September 30, 2013, as compared to the period ended September 30, 2012 due to inflation pressure
in the Chinese domestic market. Gross profit margins by product segment for the three months ended September 30,
2013 were: 23-26% for chestnuts, 20-23% for convenience foods and 16-18% for frozen foods.

Operating Expenses

Selling and Marketing Expenses. Our selling and marketing expenses decreased $136,808, or 5.9%, to $2.2 million in
the third quarter of 2013 from $2.3 million in the third quarter of 2012. The following table reflects the main factors
that contributed to this decrease as well as the dollar amount that each factor contributed to this decrease. The
decreases listed in the table below were partially offset by increases in dollar amount of other selling and marketing
expenses, including supermarket fees and travel expenses, etc.

(in U.S. dollars)

Decrease in Costs in the
Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 over
the Three Months Ended September 30, 2012

Transportation $ (162,198)
Port fees (91,807
Warehousing, (45,680)

Selling and marketing expenses decreased together with the sales and also as we control our costs carefully.

General and Administrative Expenses. We experienced a decrease in general and administrative expense of $208,709
from $1.6 million to 1.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared to the same period in
2012. The following table reflects the main factors that contributed to this decrease as well as the dollar amount that
each factor contributed to this decrease. These lower expenses are partially offset by the increase of other expenses
such as employee wages and audit fees during the three months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same
period of last year.

(In U.S Dollars)
Decrease in Costs in the
Three Months Ended September 30, 2013
over the Three Months Ended September 30, 2012
Social Security $ (35,973)
Entertainment Expense (57,232)
Travel expenses (14,090)

Interest Expenses. We experienced an increase in interest expenses of approximately $1.3 million from approximately
$1.1 million to $2.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013, compared to the same period in 2012.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in notes payable and debenture, which was $29.3 million as of September
30, 2013.

Income Before Taxation and Minority Interest
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Income before taxation and minority interest decreased $1.9 million, or 25.2%, to $5.7 million for the three months

ended September 30, 2013 from $7.6 million for the same period of 2012.

Income Taxes

Income taxes decreased $803,872, or 39.5%, to $1.2 million in the third quarter of 2013, as compared to $2.0 million

in the third quarter of 2012.

Effective January 1, 2008, the PRC government implemented a new 25% tax rate across the board for all enterprises,
without any tax holiday. However, the PRC government has established a set of transition rules to allow enterprises
that already started tax holidays before January 1, 2008 to continue utilizing such tax holidays until they are fully

utilized.

The income tax rates applicable to our Chinese operating subsidiaries in 2013 and 2012 are listed in the following

table:
2013
Junan Hongrun 25%
Luotian Lorain 25%
Beijing Lorain 25%
Shandong Lorain 25%
Dongguan Lorain 25%
Shandong Greenpia 25%
32

2012
25%
25%
25%
25%
25%
25%
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Net Income

Net income decreased $1.0 million, or 19.0%, to $4.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2013 from
$5.3 million for the same period of 2012.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

The following table summarizes the results of our operations during the nine month period ended September 30, 2013
and September 30, 2012, respectively and provides information regarding the dollar and percentage increase or
(decrease) of the nine month period ended September 30, 2013 compared to the nine month period ended September
30, 2012.

Nine months ended

September 30, Dollar($) Percentage
(%)
2,013 2,012 Increase Increase
(In US Dollar) (In US Dollar) (Decrease) (Decrease)
Net revenues 121,978,566 135,930,419  (13,951,853) -10.3%
Cost of revenues (97,233,792) (107,582,656) 10,348,864 -9.6%
Gross profit 24,744,774 28,347,763 (3,602,989) -12.7%
Operating expenses
Selling and marketing expenses (5,561,435) (5,098,669) (462,766) 9.1%
General and administrative expenses (4,293,756) (4,387,609) 93,853 2.1%
Operating income 14,889,583 18,861,485 (3,971,902) 21.1%
Government subsidy income 1,447,789 1,135,730 312,059 27.5%
Interest income 57,730 192,076 (134,346) -69.9%
Other income 1,318,999 98,779 1,220,220 1235.3%
Other expenses (134,547) (24,098) (110,449) 458.3%
Interest expense (4,612,763) (2,703,251) (1,909,512) 70.6%
Earnings before tax 12,966,791 17,560,721 (4,593,930) -26.2%
Income tax (3,289,034) (4,631,730) 1,342,696 -29.0%
Income before minority interests 9,677,757 12,928,991 (3,251,234) -25.1%
Net income attributable to:
Common stock holders 9,274,971 12,165,013 (2,890,042) -23.8%
Minority interests 402,786 763,978 (361,192) -47.3%

Revenue

Net Revenues. Our net revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 amounted to $122.0 million, which is
approximately $14.0 million, or 10.3%, lower compared with the same time period ended September 30, 2012 where
we had revenue of $135.9 million. This decrease was attributable to the decreased revenues generated from sales of
chestnut and convenience food products, as reflected in the following table:
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Nine months ended

Category 9/30/2013 9/30/2012 Increase Increase

Chestnut 58,097,797 62,947,404 (4,849,607) -7.7%
Convenience food 40,662,258 50,913,992  (10,251,734) -20.1%
Frozen food 23,218,511 22,069,023 1,149,488 5.2%
Total 121,978,566 135,930,419  (13,951,853) -10.3%

Cost of Revenues. Our cost of revenues, which consists of raw materials, direct labor and manufacturing overhead
expenses, was $97.2 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2013, a decrease of $10.3 million, or
9.6%, as compared to $107.6 million for the nine month period ended September 30, 2012. Approximately $12.3
million, of this decrease was attributable to an decrease in raw material costs, which decreased from $99.0 million
during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 to $86.7 million, or by approximately 12.4%, during the nine
months ended September 30, 2013.

The factors that contributed to 2.0 million increase in cost of revenues were: an increase in wage expense for factory
workers, an increase in depreciation expenses for capital equipment and an increase in the cost of consumables used in
conjunction with capital equipment.

Gross Profit. Our gross profit decreased $3.6 million, or 12.7%, to $24.7 million for the nine months ended September
30, 2013 from $28.3million for the same period in 2012. This decrease was attributable to decreased sales revenue,
offset by lower cost as described above. Our gross margins decreased from 20.9% to 20.3% due to inflation pressure
in the Chinese domestic market. Gross profit margins by product segment for the nine months ended September 30,
2013 were: 23-26% for chestnuts, 20-23% for convenience foods and 16-18% for frozen foods.

Operating Expenses

Selling and Marketing Expenses. Selling and marketing expenses increased $462,766, or 9.1%, to $5.6 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2013 from $5.1 million for the same period in 2012. Selling and marketing
expenses increased as we enhanced our efforts to expand our distribution channels in China as well as internationally,
and to build the brand recognition for our chestnut and convenience food products.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased $93,853, or 2.1% to $4.3
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 from $4.4 million for the same period of 2012. The decrease of
general and administrative expenses was primarily attributable to decreased entertainment expenses and employee

benefits.

Interest Expenses. We experienced an increase in interest expenses of approximately $1.9 million from approximately
$2.7 million to $4.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, compared to the same period in 2012.

Income Before Taxation and Minority Interest

Income before taxation and minority interest decreased $4.6 million or 26.2% to $13.0 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2013 from $17.6 million for the same period of 2012.

Income Taxes

Income taxes decreased approximately $1.3 million, or 29.0% to $3.3million for the nine months ended September 30,
2013 from $4.6 million for the same period of 2012. The decrease of tax paid was primarily a result of the decrease of
pre-tax income in the first nine months ended September 30, 2013, as compared to the same period in 2012.

Net Income
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Net income decreased $2.9 million, or 23.8% to $9.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 from
$12.2 million for the same period of 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2013, we had cash and cash equivalents (excluding restricted cash) of $33.2 million. Our cash
and cash equivalents increased by approximately $0.8 million from December 31, 2012, primarily due to increase in
short-term bank loans and debenture. The following table provides detailed information about our net cash flow for all
financial statements periods presented in this report.
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(in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2013 2012
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (11,785) (13,124)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,806) (3,994)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 16,437 16,409
Net cash flow (outflow) (1,154) (710)

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $11.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and net cash
used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $13.1 million . The decrease of
approximately $1.3 million in net cash flows used in operating activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2013
was primarily a result of lower increase in accounts & other receivables as compared to the same period in 2012.

Investing Activities

Our main uses of cash for investment activities are payments for the acquisition of property, plants and equipment.

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months period ended September 30, 2013 was $5.8 million and net
cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $4.0 million. The increase of $1.8
million in net cash flows used in investing activities in the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily a
result of $11.3 million payment for the purchase of land use rights, offset by $6.1 million decrease in deposits for the
nine months period ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same period of last year.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for the nine months period ended September 30, 2013 was $16.44 million,
which is an increase of $28,096 from $16.41 million net cash provided by financing activities during the same period
in 2012. The increase of the net cash provided by financing activities was primarily a result of increased proceeds
from long-term borrowings and notes payable in the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the same
period in 2012.

Loan Facilities

As of September 30, 2013, the amounts and maturity dates for our short-term bank loans are as set forth in the Notes
to the Financial Statements. The total amounts outstanding were $33.0 million as of September 30, 2013, compared
with $28.7 million as of December 31, 2012. We are also carrying a long term loan from DEG due in March 2016,
with original face value of $15 million and eight equal semi-annual principal payments commencing September 2012.
The current carrying value of this loan is $9.4 million.

We believe that our currently available working capital, after receiving the aggregate proceeds of the credit facilities
referred to above, should be adequate to sustain our operations at our current levels through at least the next twelve
months.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles

requires our management to make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported in our
financial statements, including the notes thereto, and related disclosures of commitments and contingencies, if any.
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We consider our critical accounting policies to be those that require significant judgments and estimates in the
preparation of financial statements, including the following:

Method of Accounting -- We maintain our general ledger and journals with the accrual method accounting for
financial reporting purposes. Accounting policies adopted by us conform to generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States and have been consistently applied in the presentation of our financial statements, which are
compiled on the accrual basis of accounting.

Use of estimates -- The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Management makes these
estimates using the best information available at the time the estimates are made; however, actual results could differ
materially from those estimates.

Principles of consolidation -- Our consolidated financial statements, which include information about our company
and our subsidiaries, are compiled in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.
All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Our consolidated financial statements
include 100% of assets, liabilities, and net income or loss of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. Ownership interests of
minority investors are recorded as minority interests.
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As of September 30, 2013, the details pertaining to our subsidiaries were as follows:

Attributable
equity

Name of Company Place of interest % Registered

incorporation capital

Shandong Lorain Co., Ltd PRC 80.2 $ 13,181,950
Luotian Lorain Co., Ltd PRC 100 4,019,743
Junan Hongrun Foodstuff Co., Ltd PRC 100 48,758,230
Beijing Lorain Co., Ltd PRC 100 1,629,620
Shandong Greenpia Foodstuff Co.,Ltd PRC 100 2,503,096
Dongguan Lorain Co,,Ltd PRC 100 162,962
International Lorain Holding Inc. Cayman Islands 100 50,711,737

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets -- The long-lived assets held and used by us are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may not be
recoverable. It is reasonably possible that these assets could become impaired as a result of technology or other
industry changes. Determination of recoverability of assets to be held and used is by comparing the carrying amount
of an asset to future net undiscounted cash flows to be generated by the assets.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of
the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. During the reporting period, there was no impairment loss.

Revenue recognition -- Our revenue recognition policies are in compliance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 104.
Sales revenue is recognized at the date of shipment to customers when a formal arrangement exists, the price is fixed
or determinable, the delivery is completed, no other significant obligations of ours exist and collectability is
reasonably assured. Payments received before all of the relevant criteria for revenue recognition are satisfied are
recorded as unearned revenue.

Our revenue consists of invoiced value of goods, net of a value-added tax. No product return or sales discount
allowance is made as products delivered and accepted by customers are normally not returnable and sales discount is
normally not granted after products are delivered.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-01, Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and
Liabilities ( ASU 2013-01 ). The Update clarifies that ordinary trade receivables and receivables are not in the scope of
Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and
Liabilities. Specifically, Update 2011-11 applies only to derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse purchase
agreements, and securities borrowing and securities lending transactions that are either offset in accordance with
specific criteria contained in FASB Accounting Standards Codification® or subject to a master netting arrangement or
similar agreement. The amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
years, beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Management does not expect the adoption of this standard has a
significant effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

For public entities, the amendments that are subject to the transition guidance is effective for fiscal periods beginning
after December 15, 2012. Management does not expect the adoption of this standard has a significant effect on the
Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income ( ASU 2013-02 ). The amendments require an organization to:
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a. Present (either on the face of the statement where net income is presented or in the notes) the effects on
the line items of net income of significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive
income but only if the item reclassified is required under U.S. GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its
entirety in the same reporting period.

b.  Cross-reference to other disclosures currently required under U.S. GAAP for other reclassification items

(that are not required under U.S. GAAP) to be reclassified directly to net income in their entirety in the
same reporting period. This would be the case when a portion of the amount reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income is initially transferred to a balance sheet account (e.g., inventory
for pension-related amounts) instead of directly to income or expense.

The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012, for public companies.

Management does not expect the adoption of this standard has a significant effect on the Company s consolidated

financial position or results of operations.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-03, Clarifying the Scope and Applicability of a Particular
Disclosure to Nonpublic Entities ( ASU 2013-03 ). The amendment clarifies that the requirement to disclose the level
of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurements are categorized in their entirety (as Level 1,
Level 2, or Level 3) does not apply to private companies and nonpublic not-for-profits for items that are not measured

at fair value in the statement of financial position, but for which fair value is disclosed. The amendments are effective
upon issuance. Management does not expect the adoption of this standard has a significant effect on the Company s
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04, Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability
Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation Is Fixed at the Reporting Date ( ASU 2013-04 ). The
update provides guidance for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of obligations resulting from joint and
several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation within the scope of this ASU is fixed at the
reporting date, except for obligations addressed within existing guidance in US GAAP. The guidance requires an
entity to measure those obligations as the sum of the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its
arrangement among its co-obligors and any additional amount the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its
co-obligors. The guidance in this ASU also requires an entity to disclose the nature and amount of the obligation as
well as other information about those obligations. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. Management does not expect the adoption of
this standard will have a significant effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05, Parent s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment
upon Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a
Foreign Entity ( ASU 2013-05 ). The ASU clarifies that when a parent entity ceases to have a controlling financial
interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business (other than a sale of in substance real
estate or conveyance of oil and gas mineral rights) within a foreign entity, the parent is required to apply the guidance

in Accounting Standards Codification 830-30 to release any related cumulative translation adjustment into net income.
The ASU provides that the cumulative translation adjustment should be released into net income only if the sale or
transfer results in the complete or substantially complete liquidation of the foreign entity in which the subsidiary or
group of assets had resided. The amendments take effect prospectively for public companies for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2013, and interim reporting periods within those years. Management does not expect the adoption

of this standard will have a significant effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-07, Liquidation Basis of Accounting ( ASU 2013-07 ). The ASU
requires an entity to prepare its financial statements using the liquidation basis of accounting when liquidation is
imminent. Liquidation would be considered imminent when the likelihood is remote that the reporting entity would
return from liquidation and either: (a) a plan for liquidation has been approved by the person or persons with the
authority to make such a plan effective and the likelihood is remote that the execution of the plan will be blocked by
other parties or the entity will return from liquidation, or (b) a plan for liquidation is imposed by other forces, and the
likelihood is remote that the entity will return from liquidation. If a plan for liquidation was specified in an entity's
governing documents at its inception (for example, limited-life entities), then liquidation would be imminent only if
the approved plan for liquidation differs from the plan specified at the entity s inception. The amendments take effect
for all entities reporting under U.S. GAAP, except investment companies that are regulated under the Investment
Company Act of 1940. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2013, and
interim reporting periods therein. Early adoption is permitted. Management does not expect the adoption of this
standard will have a significant effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

As of September 30, 2013, there are no other recently issued accounting standards not yet adopted that would have a
material effect on the Company s consolidated financial statements

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance arrangements.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not required.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) that are
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC s rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including to our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30,
2013. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of
September 30, 2013, and as of the date that the evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures was completed, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective due to the material weakness in
our internal control over financial reporting described below.
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Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
Management s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based upon the framework in Internal Control Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on
that evaluation, our management concluded that, as of December 31, 2012, our internal controls over financial
reporting are not effective.

The material weakness and significant deficiency identified by our management as of December 31, 2012 relates to
the ability of the Company to record transactions and provide disclosures in accordance with U.S. GAAP. We did not
have sufficient and skilled accounting personnel with an appropriate level of technical accounting knowledge and
experience in the application of US GAAP commensurate with our financial reporting requirements. For example, our
staff members do not hold licenses such as Certified Public Accountant or Certified Management Accountant in the
U.S., have not attended U.S. institutions for training as accountants, and have not attended extended educational
programs that would provide sufficient relevant education relating to U.S. GAAP. Our staff needs substantial training
to meet the demands of a U.S. public company and our staff s understanding of the requirements of U.S. GAAP-based
reporting are inadequate.

Remediation Initiative

We plan to provide U.S. GAAP training sessions to our accounting team. The training sessions will be organized to
help our corporate accounting team gain experience in U.S. GAAP reporting and to enhance their awareness of new
and emerging pronouncements with potential impact over our financial reporting. We also plan to engage a certified
public accounting firm in the United States to act as a consultant to provide advice regarding U.S. GAAP and internal
controls over financial reporting.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting.

During the three months ended September 30, 2013, there were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting identified in connection with the evaluation performed during the fiscal year covered by this report that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations Over Internal Controls.

Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Our

internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of our assets;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with GAAP, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of our management and directors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our internal
controls will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated,
can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the
design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be
considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of internal
controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Also,
any evaluation of the effectiveness of controls in future periods are subject to the risk that those internal controls may
become inadequate because of changes in business conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

PART II.
OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we have disputes that arise in the ordinary course of business. Currently, there are no material legal
proceedings to which we are a party, or to which any of our property is subject.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Not applicable.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None

ITEM 4. REMOVED AND RESERVED

Not applicable

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit Description
No.

1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

1. Certification of Principal Financial Officer filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

322 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of theSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: November 14, 2013
AMERICAN LORAIN CORPORATION

/s/ Si Chen

Si Chen
Chief Executive Officer

[s/ David She

David She
Chief Financial Officer
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